
 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
w w w . l i n c o l n s h i r e i l . g o v  

2019_04_18_ZB_Minutes_approved 

 
APPROVED  Minutes of the REGULAR MEETING OF THE ZONING BOARD held on 

Thursday, April 18, 2019 in the Public Meeting Room in the Village Hall, 
One Olde Half Day Road, Lincolnshire, IL. 

 
PRESENT: Chairman Bichkoff and Members Kalina, Udoni, and Hersch 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Tonya Zozulya, Planning and Development Manager  
 
ABSENT:  Member Hashemi and Trustee Liaison McDonough 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Bichkoff called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 

The roll was called by Planning and Development Manager (PDM) Zozulya and 
Chairman Bichkoff declared a quorum to be present. 
 

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
        

2.1 Approval of the Minutes for the Regularly Scheduled Zoning Board Meeting held 
on Tuesday, January 8, 2019.  

 
Member Kalina moved and Member Udoni seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Zoning Board. The motion passed 
unanimously by voice vote.  

 
3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

Chairman Bichkoff recessed the Zoning Board meeting and opened the following 
Public Hearings: 
 

  3.1  A Public Hearing regarding a Rezoning of 2 Hotz Road Property from R1 Single-
Family Residential to E Small Scale Office for Lincolnshire Animal Hospital, 420 
Half Day Road and 2 Hotz Road (Lincolnshire Animal Hospital)  

 
3.2  A Public Hearing regarding a Major Special Use Amendment to Lincolnshire 

Animal Hospital Special Use Permit Granted by Ordinance #09-3083-06 for the 
Property at 420 Half Day Road to Add 2 Hotz Road Property to 420 Half Day 
Road Property Governed by Special Use and to Allow Parking Expansion onto 2 
Hotz Road Property for Animal Hospital Operations for Lincolnshire Animal 
Hospital, 420 Half Day Road and 2 Hotz Road (Lincolnshire Animal Hospital) 

 
3.3  A Public Hearing regarding a Variation from Code Section 6-11-2(B)(4) to Locate 

Parking Spaces in a Front and Corner Side Yard for Lincolnshire Animal 
Hospital, 420 Half Day Road and 2 Hotz Road (Lincolnshire Animal Hospital) 

 
3.4  A Public Hearing regarding a Variation from Code Section 6-15-3(A)(1)(a)(i) to 

Locate a Yard Fence in a Required Corner Side Yard Setback for Lincolnshire 
Animal Hospital, 420 Half Day Road and 2 Hotz Road (Lincolnshire Animal 
Hospital) 



Zoning Board Meeting 04/18/2019 
Page 2  
 

 
PDM Zozulya presented a drone aerial video prepared by Community & 
Economic Development staff which provided the Zoning Board a current aerial 
view of the 420 Half Day Road, 2 Hotz Road, and surrounding properties. 
 
Dr. Stuart Clarke, Lincolnshire Animal Hospital, provided historical facts 
regarding the hospital location and subsequent expansion since the original 
opening in 1972. In 2009, the hospital completed an expansion and remodel, 
which included a two-way access drive and rear parking lot. He stated the 
practice continues to experience growth and has added additional doctors and 
support staff. Customer and staff parking demands have resulted in patients 
parking in the access drive and disrupting traffic flow. Dr. Clarke stated their 
practice approached the current owners of 2 Hotz Road to purchase the parcel 
for additional parking and they are currently under contract. He added the subject 
property has drainage issues and many dead trees, and their intention is to 
provide a well-screened, low-impact parking area with attractive landscaping. 
 
Dr. Clarke presented the proposed plans for the parking lot, lighting, and 
landscaping, and reiterated the request to rezone the 2 Hotz property, amend the 
existing hospital Special Use permit, and obtain variations for front, corner side 
yard parking, and fence location in the corner side yard setback. He further 
requested the Findings of Fact be entered into the record. 
 
PDM Zozulya, reviewed procedural and code compliance items. A Zoning Board 
public notice was published in the April 3, 2019 Daily Herald and certified written 
notification to surrounding property owners was provided by the petitioner. 
Courtesy notices were also provided by the petitioner to the Westgate and 
Beaconsfield HOA Presidents. She stated staff received a statement from Mrs. 
Cheryl Pratt, the President of the Westgate HOA who is in support of the 
proposal as this is an opportunity to clean up the site and improve site visibility 
with less impact than an office building proposal. 
 
PDM Zozulya reviewed the rezoning proposal, stating it will comply with the E 
Small Scale Office District requirements by providing a low-density use to serve 
as a transition to adjoining residential areas. An amendment to the Special Use 
permit is required due to the addition of a new property being for the Animal 
Hospital Special Use and construction of additional parking. The variations 
requested for parking lot and fence locations are presented as a hardship, given 
the footprint of the existing building, based on the petitioner’s responses to the 
Findings of Fact Standards. The Zoning Board must review the responses and 
find each standard has been addressed in order to provide a favorable 
recommendation to the Village Board. She further explained the Special Use 
Permit approval becomes null and void if the improvements are not substantially 
under way within three years of Village approvals. The variation approval 
becomes null and void if the improvements are not substantially under way within 
one year of Village approvals and no one-time extension has been requested. 
Rezoning approvals, once granted, never become null and void regardless of the 
improvement status. The Village Board was supportive of the project but the 
parking and fence variation was not part of the petitioner’s initial presentation to 
the board but will be reviewed when this project goes back to the Village Board 
for final review and potential approval. The proposal will also appear before the 
Architectural Review Board in April for consideration of the parking layout and 



Zoning Board Meeting 04/18/2019 
Page 3  
 

design, fencing, landscaping/tree removal, and lighting. 
 
Chair Bichkoff opened the floor for members of the audience. No speakers 
came forward and there was no public testimony. 
 
Member Udoni stated she is in full support of the project.  Member Kalina said 
an office building would cause more congestion; this is better use of the property. 
 
Chair Bichkoff asked if Zoning Board members had reviewed the Findings of 
Fact and if there were any questions or comments. The Public Hearings were 
closed and the Zoning Board meeting was reconvened. 
 
Member Udoni moved, seconded by Member Hersch, having made findings 
based on facts covered in a Public Hearing on April 18, 2019, that the Zoning 
Board recommend approval to the Village Board of a rezoning of the 2 Hotz 
Road property from R1 Single-Family Residential to E Small Scale Office, as 
presented in the petitioner’s presentation packet and based on the Rezoning 
Findings of Fact, dated April 2, 2019.  
 
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

Member Kalina moved, seconded by Member Udoni, having made findings 
based on facts covered in a Public Hearing on April 18, 2019, that the Zoning 
Board recommend approval to the Village Board of a Special Use amendment to 
the Lincolnshire Animal Hospital Special Use Permit granted by Ordinance #09-
3083-06 for the property at 420 Half Day Road to allow parking expansion onto 2 
Hotz Road property for Animal Hospital operations, as presented in the 
petitioner’s presentation packet and based on the Special Use Findings of Fact, 
dated April 2, 2019. 
 
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

Member Hersch moved, seconded by Member Kalina, having made findings 
based on facts covered in a Public Hearing on April 18, 2019, that the Zoning 
Board recommend approval to the Village Board of a variation from Code Section 
6-11-2(B)(4) to locate parking spaces in a front and corner side yard, as 
presented in the petitioner’s presentation packet and based on the Variation 
Findings of Fact, dated April 2, 2019. 
 
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

Member Udoni moved, seconded by Member Kalina, having made findings 
based on facts covered in a Public Hearing on April 18, 2019, that the Zoning 
Board recommend approval to the Village Board of a variation from Code Section 
6-15-3(A)(1)(a)(i) to locate a yard fence in a required corner side yard setback, 
as presented in the petitioner’s presentation packet and based on the Variation 
Findings of Fact, dated April 2, 2019. 
 
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS (None) 

 



Zoning Board Meeting 04/18/2019 
Page 4  
 
5.0 NEW BUSINESS  

 
PDM Zozulya, stated Member Hashemi, who was recently elected to the District 103 
School Board, has submitted her resignation from the Zoning Board effective May 16, 
2019. Member Hashemi has been a member since 2017. She expressed the Village’s 
appreciation for Member Hashemi’s contributions to zoning reviews. Chair Bickhoff 
thanked Member Hashemi for her service to the Zoning Board. 
 
There will be a total of two vacancies on the Zoning Board. PDM Zozulya stated any 
residents wishing to serve on the Zoning Board are invited to apply online.  

 
6.0 CITIZENS COMMENTS (None) 

 
7.0 ADJOURNMENT  
  
There being no further business, Chairman Bichkoff requested a motion for adjournment. 
Member Kalina moved, and Member Hersh seconded the motion to adjourn.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:40 P.M. 
 
Minutes submitted by Carol Lustig, Administrative Assistant, Community & Economic 
Development Department 


